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ERQOCEZRINEGS
The Chief Justice: Number 49, Wllliam J. Opper vs. United

States of Amerlca.

The Clerk: Counsel are present.

The Chief Justice: Colonel Wiener.

ARGUM™NT ON BvHALF OF PRTITIONER
By Mr. Wiener

Mr. Wlener: If the Court please, this is not a net worth
cace, 80 There will be no safes or satchels full of folding
money, nor any saga of the frugal life. It isn't even 2 tax case.

The only poin” which thls case has in com;m with any of
the others 1s the question to whlich Mr. Frankel addressed himself
at the close of his argument, namely, the questlon whether and
to vhat extent admisslons after the fact require corroboration;
and on that point, there is, iz our view, a very signlificaent
difference betweren this case and the othess, because in thls case,
the admls=ions of the petitlonor supply the only competent
proof in this record thet any crine was coomltted by anyone, or
otherwlse stated, there 18 no cuse agalnst this petitloner
without his own statemenis.

Mow, with that by way of preliminery differentliatlion, 1
turn to the flactse hors.

The petitlioner was Jjoln*ly iLndleted in the Southern Udstrict
of Ohio with oneo Folliflield in & flve=count Lnclcetment. There
eld a8 prinecipel, and

wvere four sunilar ve €
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the petitioner as alder and abettor, and these substantive
counts allege that Hollifield, a civillan employee of the ALr
Force, agreed to receive and did receive payments from the
petitioner in relation to his officlal aotions.

All of the substantive counts are simlilar except as to the
dates and the amounts of the payments or the agreements to pay.

And then there was a fifth count, a conspiracy count,
elleglng a consplracy between the two to violate the law pro-
hibiting such payments, and to deprive-thb United States of the
falthful services of its employee.

A motion for severance was overruled; the two were jolntly
tried; they were both convicted on all counts.

This petitioner appealed fo the Sixth Clrcult, where his
conviction on two of the counts was set oside, and I wlll advert
later on to the significance of that, and this Court then
granted certiorarli on the admlssions, baslcally on the admissions
questions.

The essentlal facts are few, and they ares not in dispute.
Hollifield was an equlpment deslgner who prepared specifications
for survival kit equipment of the Alr Force.

Now, a survival kit, broadly specaking, 1s an item contalning
nunerous eomponontas that 1a ploced on a plane, and 1? the plane
lands or arashes, and airyono Lo rtlll allve, these articles are

to help “hem survive, be it In the Arctie o in the Troplcs,

in the Jungle or on Lha ocein.

——
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Now, the petitioner was & dezler in goggles, and those are
items that are useful and used in those survival kits, and the
petitlioner wanted to become & subcontrictor to the prime
contractors who were furnishing the kits. His proposals at

first were rejected becausze his goggles didn't measure up to the

specifications.

Thereafter, Holllifield changed the speclfications;
patitioner's goggles were accepted, he became a subcontractor,
and the gr;vamen of the lndictment is that he made payments to
Hollifield related to the chenges in specifications.

Now, the case 1s here because the only proof in this record
arguably competent sgalnst the petitloner showing any payment or
any agreement to pay, is contalned in petitioner's admi ssions,
admissions orally and in writing, made to FRI ag;nts after the

date of the acts charged in the indictnent.

At the trisl, there were lntroduced extra- judiclial statements
by Hollifleld which admittedly and concodedly were inadmissible
against the petitioner.

ng question, therefore; presented hore 18: Yhether and to
vhat extent those statements of the petitloner require
corroboration.

The first inquiry under that heading 1s whether an admission
made after the dste of the acts charged as crimes requires cor-
roboration, and on thil our sterting polnt is this Court's opinion

-

in the Warsiower ocose, in ;12 Uniled Stutes, and since the passage




is short, in order that the precise language may be before
Your Honors, I will reed it. It is at page 12 of petitioner's
brief: ’

“The rule requiring corroboration of confessions
protecte the administration of the criminal law against
errors in convlctions based upon untrue confessions
alone."

( :

I pause there to point out a divergency ln the Government's
approach to that lssus. In the Calderon brief it seld that th;t
requirement can readlly be accepted as flrinly imbedded 1n our law.

In its brief in this case, the Government questlions that
mle for about six pages.

Now, I do not know whether that divergency reflects that
view that 1inconsistency 1s more precious than any jewel or whether
it 1s hoped that by first establlishing &and then abandoning a
series of untenable pesitions there will be some tactical advantage
when it comes teo defending the maln line of resistance.

But, to return to the quotatlon:

"The rule requiring corroboration of confessions
protects the administration of the criminal law
against errors in convlctlons based upon untrue con=-
feosslons alonas. Yhere tho Lnconslstent statement was
made pidor Lo the cvrime thile dungrr does nol exlet.
Thoyafore wa are of the view Chat such adnisclons do

not need to be corrsborated. They contaln none of the
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inhorent weaknesses ol confecsions or admisslons after

the fapt.“

Now, since we are heore cleerly concerned with admissions
after the fact, we think that this case, with respect to the
requirement for corroboretion as such, is clearly within the
rationale of the Varszower case.

The Government admits thal we seem to be within the language
of the Warszower ces~, but at two points in 1ts briefl suggests
very strongly that this Court did not mean what it said in the
Warszover case.

Whet was the Court asked to say in the Warszower case? In
the Government!s brlef in this cese, set out at page 13 of our
brief, this is-what the then follecltor General sald:

"It 1s the Government's contention that independent
” 4
evidence is requred only in the case of coniesalons,

and of admissions made after the event and in the con-

text of conversations, interviews, and proceedings

relating to the offense itself. The theory of this

position squares with the purpose of the rule requir-

ing corroboratlion.”

Now that, of course, is the preclise situation here,"admissions
made after the event, and in the context of conversations, inter-
vievs and procecdings relating to the offense iteelf."

1 would like to demonstrate that the Govermment's position

-

1n Warszover win correct, and alss that Your Honors' position in

-

_
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WVarszover vas correct, and there I come to attempt a distinotion,
an analytical distincti;on, between confessions and admissions,
and I suggest that we will all be assisted 1f we abandon the
labels and concentrate on the realities.

Now, the real difference between a confession and an
adniselon, 1t seems to me, 1s this: that a confession is an
admlssion of overy element of the offense charged. Adnulssions,
I think, probably break down into two classes: One, 18 the
adnission in the nature of a confeecslon which is an admission
of one or more of the elements of tha offense charged, but not
all; those admisslons, those partial confessions such as are
involved here, we submit, must be treated on a perity with full
confesslions.

Then there 1s another kind, and that is an admission of some !

fact not constituting an element of the offense charged, and as
to those there may well be a ginstion. I 1s not essential to
this petitioner's case to urge that those admissions of par-
ticular facts s;and on the same footing.

Often there 18 the question, es in the Calderon case, whether
the partioular item, as to which corroboration is sought, is an
ultimate fact or is a subsidlary fact.

I think the Govermment there also shows a divergence of view
1n ite briefs in the faldernn case, and said this 1es not the

starting poiné in the Calderon omso, 13 not an essential

element oL the cule. M., Holland, on argumont, sald, yes, he

_




thought it wus a cruclal fact.

Fortunately, I do not have to resolve that. In any event,
the difference between, L1f there 18 a difference between the
quantum of corroboration required for tho two kinds of admissions
i3 really related to the rule I wlll dlscuss in the course of
the argument, namely, whether there is the necessity for independent
proof of all elements of the criminal act, apart from what the
dafendant said but whore, as 1n this case, the admissions supply
and relate to the esscntlal elements of the offense, and vhere,
as I will show in thls case, they supply the only proof of
esgential elemente of the offense, then we say they are within

the scope of tha confession rule requlring corroboration, and

then that we 8ay is -~ I say 15 -- the meaning of Warszower, and
I do not have to go beyond the issue in the Calderon ocase.
Now, it 1s true that there are a great many dicta to the
effect that sdmissione go in more easily than confessions; 1f
there ig an admission before the fact, yes, Warszower holds that
squarely.
It may be true, as to admissions of incicental facts not
constituting essentiel elements of the offense, but 1t is
definitely not true as to the other type of admiselon which
clearly admits essentlal elewmonte of the offense. 3
I will take three examples: S3Suppose an admission is coerced. ?

It is perfectly obvious it 1s inadmlesible, even though 1t is

not a full confesslion.
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Suppoge an admission ia obtained through improper inducement ?
It 18 porfecily eclear, it seems to me, that on that simple issue
wvhich 1is ralsed in the "mlth csse, but on that simple issue, 1if
it 18 shovn that the admisslen was ohbhtalned by improper inducement,
1t would be lnadmissible.

And certalnly where an admipsion ls obtained from someone
unlawfully detained, 1t is just es lnadmiesible as a confession
obtained in The same clrcumstances.

So that we feel that the true rule le that if an admission
after the fact 1s used to cenvict 2 defendant, because it supplies
an essential element of his gullt, 1t stande on the same footing
in every respect as a full confession and, therefore, requires
corroboration.

Justice Frankfurter: Your three instances have nothing to
do with the principle requlring corroboration?

Mr. Wiener: That ls correct, because the admissions --

Justice Frankfurter: They are excluded on another ground.

Mr. Wiener: Yes. But I am addressing myself to the con-
tsntion made that admissions go in more easily than confessions,
and the Government has found & dictum in a footnote in the
Stein case which supports it fully ~-- not very full support, but
that is all they have.

Juatice Rocd: 1Ia this purtlicular casec, was the admlssion
amthing more than thut he had losned tho monoy to Hollifield?

Mr. Wicner: %cll, the cdmlssion -~ I can onswer that in the
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next minute. The Government suys 1t was not that kind of an {

admiesion here because it wes contained 1n an exculpatory

statement, because while adnitting a paymert to Hollifield by ;
way of lozn, he denled guilt, and the Government's position is
that only consclously inculpatory admiscslons are.within the ambit
of the mule requirdng corroboration.

Here again, I suggest we leeve to one side labels like
"{neulpatory,” "exculpatory." They are no more helpful than
the old, but mow largely dlaocerded, distinction between intrinsic

and extrinsic fraud. ?

Justlce Frankfurter: 'e rejected that distinctlon as to

coerclon.

Mr. Wiener: Yes, I think so. Certainly after the Hezel~-
Atlas and XKncuer cases that distinction has very little play,
if any, even in the fleld 1n equlty.

I want to concentrate once more on the realitlies.

The heart of a confession or an admlssion of the first
class .8 that 1t 1s tho edmlesion of a fact essential to establish
gullt,

It seems to me that the concomitant expression or non-
expression of a sense of moral gullt ls completely lmmaterial,
because notably in oconsplracy cases -- and this lnvolves a
consplracy count -~ we lknow Lhat Cho concept of consplracy is
very technleal, meanlngless to loymern and rotl too meaningful to

many lawyers.
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Moreover, here petitioner in the substantive counts wes
indicted for a vlolation of 18 U.5.C. 281, a statute directed
in tems at govermment officers, end he was a private citizen.

He was indicted by uce of the alding and abetting provision
of the code; but I submlt it would take a great deal of imagins-
tion for the ordinary laymem to essume that he could possibly
violete & statute directed ageinst acts by government officers;
and also, this indlctment was not found until March 1952, and
the admisslons all dete from October 1951, several months
beforehand.

Let me test this notion of the Govermment of the consclous
admlssion of gullt some more. Suppose there is a charge of pre-
meditated murder, and suppose the accused says, "Yes, I shot
him through the head with my 45 pistol. It was impulsive, not
Planned. In my heart I fael innocent; I have no consclousness
of guilt, and I feel thet history will applaud my act."

Now, that 1s not a full confeesion because it does not admit
the element of premeditation.

On the Government standerd that would not be a conscilous

admission of gullt and, therefore, would not require any corrobora-

tion, so we say that that notion 1s completely untenable.

When the defencant admits the fact, but denles guilt, cer=
tainly 1t Ls conlession and avoidunce, hut & confession is none-
theless a confession 1f you try te drag ln a little avoidance at

the tag end.
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Now here, this petitlioner's admlsslons clearly touch the
fact of guilt. He adnits esae;tial elements of the offenses
charged, namely, payments and an agrcement to pay, and the only
inguiry, therefore, is was the admisslon made after the dates
of the acts charged in the Llndictment; were they made "in the
context of conversations, interviews, and proceedings relating
to the offense 1tself," and since here they unquestionably ‘rare,
wo say those admissions requlre corroboration, and I turn te the
next question, what is the quantum of corroboration.

Justice Frankfurter: Before you tell what the quantum i,
will you be good enough to stale neutrally what were claimed to
be the item or items of corroboration.

Mr. Wiener: Yos. The ltems of corroboration, the change
in the specifications, Hollifleld changed the speclifications.
There vas one meeting belwecn Opper and Holliflield at which
others were present; there was one long-distance phone call
from Hollifield in Duyton to Opper in Chicago; there was one
trip by Hollifleld -~

Justice Frankfurter: Whut was sald 1s immaterial to the
question, just the fact of the talk?

Mr. Wiener: Well, there was a talk at which other persons
were present, at which the changs in the specifications was
discussed. There was no ethoving of any talk regarding payment .
There was proof that Nollifleld took a trip to Chicago and

returned.

PEE———— e
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liere 18 prool alaso Thatl two days after the date when

doliifield is alleged Lo have made the payment of $1,000 in

casn to Hoilifleld, uwo Jdays aller Opper ceshed a check ror
31,000,

Now, so far as the quantum of corroboration is concerned,
this Court is writing on a blan% slate; it has never really
been dlscussed here.

There are three variants of the rmle in the Federal Courts.

AT - ——

The originel rule in the Federal Courts, restated by Judge Hand,
in the Daeche case is this: that a confession is sufficlently
corroborative 1f extre-confessional fects satiefy the judge that
the confession 18 true, and here and now and hereafter when 1
say "confession" or "extra-confessional™ I hope Your Honors
will understand thet that 1s shorthand, and is taken to be ==
is to be teken to include also admissions after the fact of
essential elements. That is the Daeche case.

The confession i1s sufficlently corroborated 1f you have
outslide facts enough to satisfy the Judge that the confession
ie probably true; that is the Daeche or the loose rule.

Then, in the Listrict of Columbla Circult some nineteen
vears later, in the Forte case, a stricter rle wvas laid down
to this effaoct: that a confesclon needs to be corroborated by
2 prima faclc showlng outelde of the confeeslon of the corpus,
of overy elomcat of the corpus delletl.

There must he substantlal evidence touching outside the
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confession, touching every element of the corpus delicti, in-

cluding the scienter.

Then there 18 a third variant of the rule which is stated
in these terms: that 1t is nccescary to show, outside of the i
confession, that a crime was probably committed by someone. I |
call that a verbal distinc:lon because it 1s applied both ways. i
It is applied hy circuits that follow the Forte rmile, and '
by eircuits that follow the Daeche rule.
' The declslve distinction between Lhe two is this, even

when stated That way: ILs 1t sufficlent to prove the corpus

dellctl through the confesslon plus the outeide evidence, or

must you prove the corpus delicti at lcest prima facle, entirely

by outside evidence?

The latter 1s the accepted rule 1n the Distriet of Columbia.
Thare 1s not any doubt about iL; it was stated in the Trcoll case,
page 48 of the Govermment's briof, Item (2)3:

"such corroboraélon 1s not sufficlient if it

tends merely to suvport the confession without alseo

enbrecing substantial evidence touching and tending

to prove sach of the maln elements or constituent

perts of the corpus delicti.”

How, the confllicts 1n the clrecults -« the eircuits are in
confliet between themselvos, and in some cases within themselves,
but T think at the (recont tlme, ¢he majordity of eirocuits follow

Fonﬂo
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Now, the reasons for Forte seem to me, however, far more
significant than the mere counting of circuits, and we do not
have to speculate as to the reasons that led to the Forte rui.,
because those reasons were set forth in the opinion.

It wos based on experience; 1t was besed speclifically on
experience 1n the intervening years with improperly obtalned
confesslons, and the Forte opinion cites the report of the
Wickersham Copmisgsion.

It was not a case, as the Covermment socoms to feel, of
doing homage, undue homage, to the technlcal concopt of corpus
dellictl, not at all. It was occaaloned by & deep and far-
reaching judieial distrust of confession.

Now, hes our experience since 1937 caused anyone to trust
confessions more? The pages of this Court report are eloquent
vroof of the unreliabillity of confessions and of the numerous
occasions when improper confessions were obtalned, and we Jo
not have to éo betind the Iron or Bamboo Curtains for examples
of brain-washings, we have it right here in Leyra v. Denno,
in 347 United States, decilded in the last temm.

S0 1 say that the experience, the Judiclial experience,
vith confessions Justifies the majority of courts lining up
bshind Forle, and so {ar as I know, no ono in the Distriot of
Columbla has sver complalned that Che Forte rmule hamstrings law
s aforceinent .

And this aleo, LU scemi to mp -~
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Justice Reed: What do you say about the Ercolli statement =--
this is the fourth of the Frcoli statement:

"If there is substantial evidence of the corpus
delictli, independent of the confession, and the two,
together, are convinelng beyond a reasonable doubt
of the defendant's guilt, that 1s sufficient.”

Mr. Wiener: Well.., that means this ==
Justlce Reed: That does not require 2 complete proof.
Mr. Wiener: That is right, prima faclie proof, that is right.
The Frecoll-Forte ruls does not require proof of the corpus
delictl beyond a reasonable doubt, outside of the confession.
In other words, there ir still a function for the confession.
Justlce Reed: Is prima facle evidence sufficlent?

Mr. Wiener: Txactly. But there has got to be prima facle

or, as they say in Frcoll, substantiesl evidence touching and
tending to prove every clement of the offense.

Justice Reed: Well, does that substantial evidence have
to be sufficient to make a prima facle case?

Mr., Wiener: Yes.

Justice Reed: You think so? Is that your position?

_oneDissent.org
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Mr. Wiener: Yes, I think that 1s the position of the cases.
I do not think there is any doubt about that, prima facie proof
of all the elements.

Justice Reed: Does that mean a man could be convicted with-
out the use of the confession?

Mr. Wiener: Not prima facle, no,.

Justice Reed: I mean if he had & prima facle ~--

Mr, Wiener: Well -~

Justice Reed: Otherwisa it would be dismissed.

Mr. Wiener: VYes. If you have sufficient to go to the
Jury outside, he could be convicted without a confession == well,
no, there is stlll one element that is not there.

Justice Reed: He mu3t have ==

Mr. Wiener: There rcmains under the Forte-Ercoll Rule, there
remaln two functions for the confession. One 18 to raise the
level of proof from ¢the prima facle to beyond a reasonable
doubt and, second, the identity of the defendant ag the
criminal.

Justice Reed: If the two together convince him beyond
reasonable doubt, but that, to me, does not say that the
corroborative esvidence must be sufficient to establish a prime
facle case.

Mr, Wiener: Vell, I think very definitely that is the rule
of the Distrist of Columbia and of the circuits following 1it.

Item (2):
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b "*Such corroboration is not suflicient if 1t tends
merely to support the conlession without also embracing
substantial evidence touching and tendinz to prove each

» of the main elements cor constituent par.s of the corpus
delictl.” i

Now, whether substantial 1s wmore than prima facle, I do

not argue that at 2ll, but there has got to be rcouc evidence

of every part of the offense other than the identlity of the

defendant, and thet 13 why 1t is frequently expressed as there

must be some evidence showing that a crime was probably committed :J

by someone. ‘;l

)

In discussinz which courts will follow Forte, and which :

’ follow Daeche, I think 1t 13 very siznlficant that in a United ;

States court, which hag more c¢riminal business than any circuit, 4

tha United States Court of Military Appeals the Forte rule ie :
followed. The Court of Mllitary Appeals has held that the

entire corpus dellcti, including the clenter, must be proved 1

outside Lhe confesslon.

Now, when ths government attacks, as it does in its Calderon ;4
brief, when 1t attacks Forte and Ercoli, as an extreme formula, |
one that carrles to technical excess the concept of the corpus
delictl, thay are in the position of asking that this Court
daclare that a defendant 1in the U.8. Distrlet Court should have

less protection thun 2 G.1. who 18 aceuged belore a court martial,

and I say Ghot vhicn p.tilloner here anlks that this Court adopt
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trhe strict rule, he is not, therefore, appealing to sentimentality
or wishy-wasny, softie ilbertarlanlem.

Now, tested agalnst the Forte-Ercoli Rule, it seems to
me perfectly clear that there is no independent proof of the
corpus dellictl outside of the petitioner's admiesion.

Apart {rom petitioner's admissions, otherwise atated, apart
from petitioner!s admlsslons, there is not any proof in this
record that a crime was probably coumitted by anyone,

All right., VWhat 1s the corpus delicti? Ae to the substan-
tive offenses, clearly it is the payment or the agreement to
pay, as the case may be,

As to the conspiracy count, the corpus delicti is the
azrzement. I assume {or present purposes that the corpus delicti
in conspiracy does not include the overt acts.

Justice Recd: Was there any other proof in this case of
yayment?

Mr. Wiener: Yo, none whatever, none whatever. The only
outside proof, as I reclte 1L --

Justice Rezd: Just got the check?

Mr. Wiener: There 18 no coupetent proof whatever of any
payment or any agreement to pay, outside of petitioner's
admiesions, and T will 1ist agein the items of independent
evidence:

The chanige in npeclfleations, cne mecting between the two

where others tere rooent, one phone call) by Hollifield to




Opper, one trip by Hollifleld to Chicago and back, and one check
cashed by Opper two days after he is supposed to have paid the
cash to Hollifleld.

Now, how does that prove that a crime 1s probably committed
by anybody? How does that possibly prove payment or agreement
to pay?

Well, the government says opportunity.

Justice Reed: One check cashed by Opper, that 1is the
check that thlslman 1s supposed to have pald him?

Mr. Wiener: He drew the check on Friday the 13th, he cashed
1t on Monday the 1l6th., The paywent by -- in the indictment it
is supposed to -- and in the admisslon, was paid on Saturday.

Now, hcw can you pay $1,000 in cash on Saturday with $1,000
in cash that you get from the bank on Monday?

Now, the governument --

Justice Reed: You Qaid Opper ceoshed 1t?

Mr. Wiener: Opper cashed it, yes. Opper drew a chec': to h
cash on Friday; he took 1t to his bank on Mondeay. He got $1,000 i
in cash. That, according to the government, 13 the money with
which he paid Hollifield on the preceding Saturday.

Now, the government lines up these scattered items under
the headings, "opporiunity meanz motives,"

Now#, that 18 rot lawyero!' louguage, if the Court plesse; that
18 tho teruilnolugy of' detectlive fiction,

Juetice Clar'i: On the probablliiy of an offense being
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committed, what about the telephone call?

Mr. Wiener: ©Nothing to show what 1t was about.

Justice Clark: Vell, he says here in his confession, some-
time in April --

Mr. Wiener: O0h, yes; oh, yes, Your Honor, it 1s in the
confession.

Justice Clark: Then they have the proof of the telephone
company that a telephone call was made; then they have the proof
cf the airlines that on the next day following the telephone
that he flew to Chlcego. .

Mr. Wiener: \uell, there 18 no question that there is
sufficient proof urder the loose Daeche standard, because there
is erough to corroborate the truth of the confeusion.

But under the strict rule, there is ilnsufficlent prool because
there 1s nothing to show that a crime was committed by anyone.

There 1s evidence to show that a crime might have been
committed, but that 1s not the test under the striet rule. You
heve to show that 1t probably was committed, and when the
government talks in the language of "who dun 1it," of opportunity
and means and motive, that seems to me the clearest proof that
they cannot show by indeperdent proof commission of any orime.

Now, there 1s an additlonal reason, we submit, why this
Court should adopt the strict Porte-Ercoll Rule, and that
additional reason is the danger luherent in conspiracy prosecutions,

to which opinions here have weny times edverted, namely, the
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danger that evidence admissible in law against only one
defendant is, in fact, going to be used by the triers of the
facts a2gainst another, and you have the same danger in any

kind of Joint trial, and this record 1s a laborutory example of
the existence of that danger.

Now, it 1is true, that the government here says, well, the
conspiracy count was not necessary. Well, maybe it was not, but
it was included, and petitiocner was convicted of a felony under
it,

The motlion for severance was denied. I think the chances
of having had either case go to the Jury if the defendants had
been tried separately, are very slight. I will not speculate
on what a Jjury might have done.

It would be a very thin case indeed if they had been tried
separately.

Now, we say 1t 1s a laboratory example of the dangers of
consplracy trials and joint trials.

Thi re were repeated admonitions and instructione as each
one -- as each defendant's ecdmissicn was introduced, that those
admissions vere not competent evidence against the other, and
I think it 1s feir to say that the record is studded with those
admiselons as a frultcake is studded with ralegins,

Notwithstanding those instiuctions, the jury convicted this
patitioner on all tle counts, and the cxperisnced and diitlnmlchoc

trial Judge, nou unfortunately deceanscd -- that is the
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characterization of the Court of Appeals -- the distinguished
and experlenced trlal Judge denled motions to acquit on all
of the counts. He denled motions for a new trial on all of the

counts, He imposed sentence on all of the counts, and the

Court of Appeals had to set aside the jJjudgment on two of the
counts because the only evidence connecting this petitioner with
those counts was the inadmissible testimony of Hollifield, and
that is why we say i1t 13 a laboratory example of those dangers
because, and 1t shows, it shows the utter impossibility of
limiting at the all-important trial level, whenever you have
a trial for conspiracy or a Joint trial by use of the aider
and abettor device of the inadmissible statemcnts of the one L
limiting those two to that point,

Now, 1s there a way of minimizing that darger? We say,
yes. Ve say you minlmize that danger by the adoption of the
strict rule of corroboration which requires independent proof

of every element of the crime, ‘ndependent proof that a orime

has probably been committed by someone; because, if you adopt
that rule, the attention ér the Jury will be focused on the
independent evidence, which 1is admissible against all of the
defendants, rather than on the declarations of one co~-conspirator
or co-defendant which are admissible only against him.

So that we say by adopting this strict rule which already
has the support of most of the circults, vhich now has the

support, s the Jow In the military tribunals, by adopting that
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rule, this Court has a magnificent opportunity to clean up what
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are now two very messy areas in criminal law: one 1s the area
of the confessions, and the other is the area of conspiracy
prosecution, and that is why we submit that the strioct rule
should be adopted, and if it ie, then this judgment must be
reversed.

Justice Frankfurter: Before you sit down, you have sald
that most of the courts of appeale -- would you be good enough --
you seem to have sat 1t forth in your brief -- Lo indicate in
which circults thls question was squarely raised, namely, the
guestion as to the guantum of proof of corroboration or the
guality of the proof --

¥r. Wlener: Yes.

Justice Frankfurter: -- rather than quantity.

HMr, Wiener:; Yes, n the District of Columblia Clrcuit.

Justice Frankfurter: Have you got them referred to in your
brief?

Mr. Wiener: Yes, but I can run through them very easlly.

Justice Frankfurter: All right, I would like you to do so.

Mr. Wiener: In the District of Columbia Circult it is
the strict rule; in the First Circult it is mentioned in the
Smith Case, just preceding this; there is really no differenti- .’
ation there,

In the “econd Circuylt there 1s the loose rule, although

there 13 an cxpression ln the last case, possibly inadvertently,
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put indicating, perhaps, a momentary lapse, but up to that time
the Second Circuit was very proud of its own rule, and would not
change 1t.

Tha Third Circuit follows the strict rule,

Justice Frankiurter: You mean in a docision?

Mr, Wiener: Y2s, in DiOrto. That is cited in the brief.

The Fourth Circult has passed on the question three times,
and has not resolved 1it.

The Fifth Circult, the Vogt Case, I think leans toward
Daeche, although using the intermediate formula.

The Sixth Circult, in the Anderscn Case, uses the intermed-
late formula, and leans toward Daeche.

The Seventh, Eighth, Ninth and Tenth follow the strict rule;
th2 Minth, I think, must be rcgarded now in the egtrict column
after the Calderon Case, which clearly follows the strict rule,
go that on my count there are silx circults clearly following the
strict rule.

The Chief Justice: Mr. Davie.

ARGUMENT ON BEHALF OF THE UNITED STATES
By Mr. Davis

Mr. Davis: If the Court please, I think that it is important,
in the first place, %o bring thls case back to the particular
admissions and the circumstances under vhich they were given.

Although the distinguished counsel for the petitioner was

ocarefvl not to Imply that the 7,B.J1. has eat in the shade and

B
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rubbed red pepper into his client's eyes, in fact much of the
basis of his argument 1s that the confessions, admissions are
improperly extorted from the defendant.
I think, therefore, that the first thing that we should do

is to sec what those admliszlons were, and the circumstancee under

which they uere gotten,

AT SO <S—

This case staried through an investigation of procurement
practices 1n Daybton, Ohlo, The Office of Special Investigation
of the Alr Porce, «nd the Fedsral Buresu of Investigation
obtailned facts first there which implicoted the petitioner, Mr.
Opper, whooe office was in Chicago.

The Office of the Federal Bureau of Investigation called
Mr. Opper In in Chisago, aud gave him a chance to tell his side
of tha Btory, since he had been implicated in these procurement
difficulties in Ohio.

He came in for the first time on October 10, 1951, and he
told the P.B.I. agents of his business of manufacturing and
selling composses and goggles, and of his gencrsl relation with
Hollifielu; but when the agent asked him whether there had been
any financlal transactions with Hollifleld, he replied that
as to that matter he felt he had better not answer until he had
had a chanse to consult with counsel, Apparently at that point
the interview ceaced,

i He cane 1n tuc days later. There ir no indication whather or

not he had sonsulted counsel, but 4t was two deys later,on’
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October 12, that he returned to the Office of the Federal
Bureau of Investigation, and at that time he gave an oral
statement which containg most eof the facts which were later
incorporated in the evidence.

He stated that he had had dealings with Mr. Holliflield,
that Mr, Hollifield nad told him that he was hard-pressed for
moncy, that he had called him on the phone and told him that he
would come to see him, that he had come to sece him, and that he,
Opper, had gilven him $1,000 at that time to meet a mortgage on
his house presuma.ly.

This $1,000, says Mr. Opper, he took from his own house --
he had 1t 1n cash at als own home -~ and he took it and handed
Lt to the petiticner in a washroom of a restaurant. He had
drawn a c¢heck for §1,000 which, this being a Saturday when the
payment was made, he could not cash on that day.

He cashed 1t cn the following Monday, and with the cash
he replaced the $1,000 fund which he kept at his home for
business purposes.

Tha agents for the Federal Bureau of Investigation then asked
Mr. Opper whether he had any records tc -substantiate this
story, and he said that he had none.

They asiced him whether he would care to reduce his statement
to writing, and he stated that he would like to have an opportunit;
to g0 over whet records he dld have, and also to refresh his

memory a8 Lo dates before pubttling suything in writing; and at that
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time he left the office and did not return until 4 d.ys later,

Four days later he returned to the office of Federal Bureau
of Investigation, and he had prepared away from the office the
statement which was introduced in evidence, the written statement
which was Iintroduced in evidence as Qovernment's Exhibit No. 41,
I belleve. Thls detalled somewhat more generally the same facts
which he had stated orally.

The agent for the Federal Bureau of Investigation said that
he felt tho statement lacked something in detall, and could he
make the statements more concrete as to the manner of payment,
and Mr. Opper replled that he felt he had cooperated as much as
was neccusary, and he dld not think it was necessary to make it
any more concrete.

He did, however, give to the agent some checks, some checks
that had been returced to him from the bank, his own checks, and
some bank statements,.

Then there was one final interview between the Federal
Burean of Ianvestigation and Mr. Opper which toolk place, I think,
about ten days later, and at that time they agaln esked him,
"Can't we have in mcre detall your statement as to what took
place in writing, partlcularly as to the financial transaction?"

Mr, Opper sald, "I shell have to consult with my own
counsel to sac whether I will give you aaything more,"

ile celled uwp cu Novenber 1st and satd, no, that he had

desided not to Zive any further written statements.
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liow, with the written statement which is in the record, and
the tectimony as to the oral statements, it seems that these
admissions give every indicatlion of trustworthiness.,

They were carefully considered and voluntary statements by
a responsible person, made on advice of his counsel. He was not
under any detentlon; he was not even accused of any orime at
the time he made the statement.

He was told he was lmplicated in this investigation. and
given a chance to explain hls side of the story, which he did
apparently voluntarily and fragmentarily.

Now, 1f any admissions by a defendant are to be admitted
against him withcut corroboration, it would seem that under
“hese circumstances tvhese are as trustiworthy as admissions can
be.

They are conslidered, careful statements by this man, and
the only reason for requiring that they be corroborated in this
case must be that 1f there 1s e reason -- 17 there is some
overwhelming public policy -- which requires the corroboration
of all admissions before they can be used.. It mu:st be an
application of a blanket rule rather than the application of
any special rule of this particular case.

Justice Pranicfurter: Mr, Davis, I do not quite follow, I
do not understand the requirment of corroboration -- the require-
ment for corroboration is o very diffcrent question as to anything

having to do with coorcion, If the une Lis to do with coerclion,




you do not have to bother about corroboration or not.

Mr. Davis: That is true.

Justice Frankfurter: Therefore, if there were any element
or any claim of coercion, would we not he addressing aur:olvoc‘
to that and not whether the statement is trustworthy? Am I wrong
in thinking that I might think this i3 as trustworthy as it can
be, and that does not answer the question?

Mr. Davis: I think i1t may answer the question, but I think

that in addition to corroboration --

Justice Frankfurter: But could it of itself? It could not
of itself.

Suppose there were nothing in this case except a confession
which, I belleve, without a doubt is abaolutely accurate in view
of the circumstances, such as you have narrated in which they
were made; dc I have to go furthear, assuming there 1is no
corroboration at all? Do I have to say this is trustworthy and,
therefore, I think it is all right to --

Mr. Davis: No. Then you would leave 1t up to the Jury ae

to how much they would want to believe of the statement, and
how much they would disbelieve., You would admit it yourself .,
Justice Frankfurter: I do not think so. I guess I do not
understand 1t, If 1t ls clear that a confession without
corroboration, non -- can 1t go to the Jjury at all?

Mz, Daviss No,

Justice Framllurter: All sight.
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Mr, Davis: If it is a confession, if it a blanket rule
requiring corroboration, it cannot go to the Jjury; it will have
to be excluded.

Justice Frankfurter: Isn't there some rule about it that
there is some corrobrration required?

Mr. Davis: Yes. I say as to confessions, the confession
cannot go to the jury under -- may I say, too, here that this
Court has never adapted that rule, although it has recognized
the rule, and for the purposes of this case we must assume that
it 1s a rule which the @ourt wants us to argue Lecause of the
nature of the questions which are presented the way this case
comes up, as to whebher the rule as to confessions appl les as
vo admissions, but I would point out that even as to’ confessions
this court has never adopted the rule of corroboration with
respect to confescions,

Justice Frankfurter: You think thet 18 open here?

Mr. Davis: That i certainly open in this Court.

Justice Frankfurter: Very well.

Mr. Davis: And there 1s respectable autnority for the
fact that the rule should not be followed, but we are not
urging that here because of the way in which thls case comes up
and which 1t peems to be aspumed that we are to argue the
application of the rule as to admissions rather than to take

the rule itgelf.

Justice Frankiuwrter; Well, it would help me a great deal
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if you would tell me whether I should leave out of my mind or
keep in my mind the question of whether a confession may be
admitted and may be the basis of a conviction wholl& devoid of
enything that anybody would call corroboration, If you tell me
I must keep my mind cpen on that, I can assure you I can keep
it open, because I have already indicated my general predisposi-
tion, but I had not supposed that we are now going ho say that
Varszovier Qaa Just an assumption which, when another case comes
along, we will throw overboard.

Now, which 1s 1t, what position 18 the govermment takinz?

Mr. Davis: The governnent 1is not urging that you overthrow
the general rule,

Justice Frankiurter: All right.

Mr. Davis: But if I may say so, I still hope that, although
we do not urge it, that you will beer in mind, I think, this
Court has never adopted 1%, and that there 1s strong authority
for not adopting 1it.

But in our brief -- neither of our briefs -- we have not
urged 1t in our brief, and I do not argue and I de not plan to
argue here that you should abandon that rule or fail to impose
it.

Excuaa we, Mr, Juetice,

Juctice Elack: That ie all right,

I do not quite understand how you -- how we can decide it

without toking inlo account the government'e ponition on that
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question. What is the difference between a confession and an
admisaion?

Mr. Davis: That I am coming to. I think there is a very
clear difference, A confeaslon, as I would define the terw,
and as I find the suthority to define it, 1s an acknowledgment
of guilt. I refer particularly to Chamberlain's definition,
which, it seems to me, fits clearly, most clearly, into the
concept which we have here.

He says that 1t is an acknowledgment of gulilt, of criminal
1iability or of such facts as, unless justified, directly and
neacessarily imply it.

In other words, a confession is a situatlion where a man
admits that he has done the thing which 1s wrong. It does
not necessarily mean that he admits moral gullt., It means that
he admits that he has done the thing which the law appears to
prohibit,

Justice Black: JIs that necessarily the scope? Suppose a
man admits he killed another, and then we try to find out who
killed him, He admits he kllled him. Sometime later he says
that he did 1t, but 1t was in self defense. Would that be a

confession or an admission?
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Mr, Davis: I think probably 1if he admitted that he killed
the man, that 1t would be a confeasion.

Justice Black: It would not necessarily --

Mr. Davis: The other, self-defense, 1s a matter of
defense; 1t is a matter of excuse, but he has committed the
thing which the law prohibits, the kllling of the person.

Justice Black: I say the law prohibits it. It is pre-
meditated; the murder or some other word that they use. The
mere fact that one admits that he killed another would not be
necesssrlly an admission that he had done anything wrong.

Mr. Davis: That 1s right. I may have misunderstood. I
thought you hzd meant self-defense, that it was an admission

b in the nature of a felonlous kKlling.

1f 1t were, for example, an automoblle accident, where .t
vas a question of gross negligence, and the man told the
investigators, "I ran down X but I was driving under 15 miles
an hour, and I was driving very cerefully.”

Justice Black: Suppose he did not put that latter part
in 1t -~ "I ran over him" -- and three or four days later he
vas asied whether he ran over him, and he sald, "I did."

Mr. Davis: I think that would be in the nature of a

confeselon; I think that is an admlssion.
Justice Black: I have not yet heard any definition dis-
tingulshing bLatween the two Lhat would be satlsfactory in every

ca’e . .
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Mr. Davis: Well --

Justice Frankfurter: Take the Fisher case, 1f I may add
to your automoblle case. The muprder in the cathedral, pre-
meditation -- 1t was part of the burden of the Government to
establish it -- and if Flsher had sald, "Yes, I xilled him,"
that would not be a confesslon, according to the Chamberlaln

definition.

Mr. Davis: I think it would, Your Honor,

Justlce Frankfurter: It weuld?

Mr. Duvis: Beceuse it says "acknovledgement of gullt of
criminal 1liabllity or of such facts, unless justlfied directly
e&nd necessarily implied."

Jsustlce Reed: Are you making & clestlnctlion botween
homiclde and rurder?

Mr., Davis: No, I was not, Your Honopr.

Justice Reed: You were speaking of murder.

Mr. Davis: Yes, I was speaking of felonlous homicilde,
first degree murder, second degree murder, not justifiadble
homliside under certaln clrcumstances.

Justice Frankfurter; Really, Mr. Davis, unless I mig~-
concelve the law of first degree murder in the Distriot, 1if
Fisher hed ecid, "I Killed this woman," and thet is all you had,
it would not possibly confict him,

i, Davie: That 1o “rue. He hes net adinltted the entire

crime, and LT wo talr the old rule of sonfevslons, that the

[ ——
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confession must include the entire crime =--

Justice Frankfurter: Or the second part of Chamberlain's
definition.

Mr. Davis: (Continuing) -- or such facts as, unless
justified,directly and necesssrily imply it =- I think maybe
you are right; I think there is not the implication of intent
there in Mr. Chemberlaln's definition.

Here, however, mayb; e can approach it from another
polint of vliew, and that 1s when there 1s a diaclaimer, a dis-
clalmer of gullt, as there !s in the admissions vhich are made
in the present case, vhatever the llne to be drawn between
confesslons and non-confoeslons in the close cases when there
18 a disclaimer of gullt, that 1s clearly not a confession,
it is a denlal of gullt as contrasted with an adnission of guilt.

The rule es to corroboration, as we see it, arises from
the distrust which courts have habltually held towards con-
fesslons of gullt, admissions of gulilt.,

The strange situation where a person lnvites his own self-
destruction by telling the officlals of the law, "I did this
thing and I should be punished," the courts have habitually
felt that a2 man should not lose his liberty, perhape his 1life,
merely on the basis of the fact thet ho himself invites that.

Now, that 1s not the kind of thing which happens in the
Knd of an adwicslon vhich ve have here. The admission ;l not

en invitation to anv denster. Oa tha contrary, the man was




defending himself.

There 18 no reason to believe that thers was any mental
aberration here, no reason to bellieve that this arises from bad
advice that he will get off more easily if he cooperates, no
reason to belleve that he 1is doing anything but stating his side
of the case as strongly and as best he can.

I think an example of the reason it can be trusted can
be glven agaln in tho traffic fleld.

If an accldent occurs, and the police officer comes upon
the scene and asks the man whoris standing there what happened,
the man says, "Well, Officer, I was driving only 15 miles an
hour, and I was driving very carefully, and he stepped out from
behind the other -ar," there is every reason to belleve, as
just from human experlience, that the man was actually driving
the car. If he had not been driving the car, one would have
expected his defense to have been that he was not driving the
car, that someone else was driving.' But when he selzes upon
the other elements and defonds himeelf on that ground, the
a@miesion that he was driving the car carrlier conviction; it
ls a reasoncble thing to accept.

That 1s, as I see 1t, the basic difference between a
confesslon and Thls Xind of an admission, One is a natural,
reasonable sort of thing for a psrzon to do in defending himself;
the other carries 11 iteolf the seeds of distrust, which

vriters on eviconco, goling hack %o Plackstone, have always
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stated 1s reason for doubt.

But factually the person who knows the most about what
the defendant did in these clrcumstances is the defendant
himself, and once we have passed the initial test of voluntari-
ness and once we have gotten by this question of whether or not
it may be induced by gome improper motlives, it seems as though
a man's own statements as to what occurred are not only trust-
worth§ avidence but, in fact, as good evidence as we can get.

That, I think, is the baslec Teason wvhy we should dis-
tingulsh botween admissions and confesslons,

Let us see what the authorities are. The “etitioner, of
course, starts out with the Warszove case, which 1s the
c¢xpresslon of this Court, whiech appecrs to draw the analogy
between admissions after the fact and confessions.

It seems to us that that 1s a perfectly natural way to
approach the problem in the Warsower case. In that case, the
admission wes made before the events which were asserted to be
criminal, and so it was perfectly apparent to the Court that
these statements were not elther induced by improper motives
or did not arise from some gullt complex on the part of the
speaker,

They could not have been because the statments were made
before the event, and so 1t vas qulte natural in holding that
these admissions by the defendant could be used against a

defendant, %o refer to the feet thet they sere made before the
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event, and to contrast it with statements that were mace after
the event; and in that respect, of course, the admlseions made
after the event fall in the same line as confessions, but I do
not think the Court was meaning to say, meaning to imply, that
all confesslons after -- all admlosions after the event should
require corroboration.

iIf they did, they were overlooking and, perhaps, not
etrangely, an old cese in this Court, the Miles case, in 109
United States, I belleve, vhere this particuler issue was before
the Court.

Justice Frankfurter; One hundred three.

Mr. Davis: One hundred three Unlted States, in 1880,

This partlcular issue of whether admissions after the fact
need to be corroborated, was Speclflcally before the Court.

Unfortunately, and probably the reeson why the case has
not been cited more frequently, the Court does not dlscuss the
issue in reaching tha docision, but it was the subject of a
request for instructlions in the trial couri; 1t wes the subject
of briefing and exceptions before this Court .

The partlcular issue of whether those admisslons needed
to be corrobvorated was squarely presented to the Supreme Court,
and the Supreme Court admlitted =-- steted that those admissions
should be ednitted 7ithout maldng any eteterent with respect
to corrobvoration.

£o far us aulhorlty pocs, the cirect holding of this Court,

.
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the direct holding of this Court i1s in favor of teking admissions
without corroboration.

When ve get to the question of how admissions have been
treated in the courts of appeals, hero agaln there is no strong
line of authority. Courts of appeals have repeatedly made
the asgertion that admissions are to be admitted more freely
than confesslons, but there are cases ~-

Justice Reed: Do you lump all admlssions in the same
category, distingulshing only between confeselons and admissions?

Mr. Davis: "ell --

Justlice Reed: Is what you have in mind that an admisslon
mlght be of a fact that was almost a confeesion, does not
requlre conflimatlion?

Mr. Devis: 1 would distingulsh between denlals of gullt,
and admlssions which are made 1n the sense of a denlal of gullt,
ednisslions which are neutrul, and admlssions which constitute
a confession of gulilt.

I think that 1¢ 1s only those that constitute confessions
of gullt, admlsslons of gullt, which are subject to this
inherent difficulty which requires corroboratio...

I think the neutral admisslions and the denlals of gullt
should fall In the llne of Lelng trustvorthy statements which
should be accepted without artificlal rules as to adniesibllity.

Justice Reed: PBul the admlipsion of a fact that is an

eloment of the crime, yon do not malke that distinetion?
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Mr. Davis: No, Your Honor; that i1s my case here. The
payment of the money, for example, is an element of the orime,
and I urge, Jjust as driving the car in the accident is an
element of the crime, 1f the man sald, "I was driving only

n

15 miles an hour,” I would not say that had to be corroborated

that he was driving; he stated that he was driving, and we
can accept that without corroboration.
Justlce Black: Most of the so-called confesslon cases we

have had have been cases where a man has confessed that he was

there and he did something, but that the other fellow really
did the evil act; and I find it dLfflcult myself to belleve
that you can draw a line between one kind of a statement,
making an admission, and another a confessiony and I think, if
[ am not mistaken, so far as coercision is concerned, 1t does
not make any dlfference if the man says, "I did 1t," or "I had
an excuse for it."

Mr. Davis: That 1s true, certainly as to coerced statements
of any kind, vhether they be admlosions or confessions, and
vhather they be mode by the defendant or some other person, if
they are coerced, then they reflact the thoughts of the coercer
rather than the speaker, and they should not be recelved in
evidonca,

Justlce Fratkfurter: 1t 1o Linoterisl that trustworthiness
can be cetavlished.

Mr., Daviss: [o oy learnsd {™end would say, ve need a

LONeLISsent
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prophylactic rule against using that kind of evidence in trials,
and so we do not pemit coerced statements to be used in
evidence, that is no way to try cases.

Justice Frankfurter: So that the question 1is not trust-
worthiness, that is not the touchstone of admissibility in that
cal=2grry of cases. I am not saylng that --

Mr. Davis: That 1s right, Ln that category of cases.

Justloce Frankfurter: I am not saylng you can transfer it
over.

Mr. Davis: That 1s right; but Lln this category of cases
trustworthiness or a fseling thet the statements are not trust-
worthy, 1s the baels of the rule requlring an ertificial test
before they can be admitted rather than leaving them to the jury.

Juetice Frankfurter; I suggested another consideration,
Mr. Davis.

Mr. Davis: I want to come to that, end that is your sug-
gestlion 1s that a man should not be convicled out of his own
mouth on any matter which 1s important to him.

Justice Frankfurter: 1 said this: The ule in most
American -- certalnly in the State courtg == the prevalling
fmerican rule is not because of that, but it 1s a reflection
of that which lies behind the constitutlonal provision that a
man shall not be convicted out of his own mouth,

Mr. Davis: It ie o gound rule, and certainly there is some

element of it in lLere; but 1f the mon's statements are because
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of the way in which they are mcde and because of the nature of

the statement, not only good evldence, but really the best
evidence you can get because the man was there.

Justice Frankfurter: He 1s the only witness.

Mr. Davis: In this case, vhen I come to 1t, I will show
you it is not the only evldence, but it 1s the best because he
was there and knows, and if he 1s telling the truth he is in
the best position to tell the Lruth, if anybody, why, then
those statements are admltted and, 28 an example of that, I
glve you the Warszowver case 1tself, whore the man is convicted
en the basls of statements made out of his own mouth, and why?

It 1s because under the clrcumstances under which those
ctatements were made they were Lrustworthy statements, and one
could leave them to the jury rather than barring them from
zdmisslon on the ground of soms artificlal rule of evidence.

Justlcs Black: You mean we have to doteimine whether 1t
ls admissible or whether they should be corroboratad?

Mr, Duvis: I think that should not be the rule as to
admissiblility., I think that should be a rule which 18 left to
the jury under proper lnstructions. In other words, we should
not detemlne whether evidence should be edmitted on the ground
of whether or not the trial court belioves that it is trustvorthy;
trat ls & cuortion vhich should be left to the Jury under proper
instruetions afteirr "hs admisslon Ls adnitted,

Put I am sugpeeting thet the bnole for the rule requiring
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corroboration of confessions is the basic untrustworthiness

of confessions, and I am stating that particularly with respect
to denlals of gullt -- a wan putting in his defense, that you
do not have that element of untrustworthiness which has
required corroboration in the case of confesesions, but, on the
contrary, you have as sound evlidence, as trustworthy evidence,
as you can have and that, therefore, the rule with respect to
confesslons,1f thls Court wishes to adept it, should not be
translated and applied to adnissions.

Justice Black: It seems to me that your position indicates
the dllemma in which the Covernment finds itself in arguing the
case, for this reason: The words "confession" and "ndmission"
have been used in this Court's opinions in separate categories,
marking off all these di=t1n;tiona, end the basis of the feeling
of thelr statement that confessions as to the of'fenses cannot
be used unless corroborated, but admlgslone can.

You are trylng, I think, as well as anybody could == I
¢o not see how anybody could -- show the difference between
confesslons ~- to ghow the dlfference, and say that they are
adnissions -- the same ressoning does not apply. Maybe it
would be the truth -- but a confession maybe would be false; and
I find 1t difficult,if we ere golng to have the rule, as you
say adopt the rule, thot corroboration is required, I would say
that 1t would apply to confesslons and not admissions, because

I would not know what the difference wapg.
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Mr., Davis:; May I suggest that 2s to one type of admissions
this Court has already sald corroborution is not necessary, so
that it 1s clear that we can differentlate in these si-ustions
and say that a8 to admlssions before the event, as to admissions
before the event, and vhatever happens afterward, corroboration
1s not necessary.

Justice Frankfurter: In a way, ever simple words like
“admlesion” have a multl-meaning -- in a way, that is not an
admisslion that we are talking about, an admiseion in relation
to the offense, beczuse the offense has not :,‘.et come, as lt were,
Into being; 1t has not yat been completeld hecause it has not
come into being.

Mr. Davis: All right. That is right. That statement by
a defendant which proves to be agalnst his interest and on which
he is convicted even from hls own mouth --

Justlce Frankfurter: It turned out to be agalnst his own
interest.

Mr. Davis: (Continuing) -- turned out to be against his
own interest.

Justice Frankfurter: At the time he was not in any danger.

Mr. Davis: That is right, any more than in many of these
cases, as In Nppor, he wes not in danger.

Justice Irenkfurtor: Well, he must have been awfully
stupld Lf he did nol Imow the vultures were clreling about him.

Mr, Davis: ‘'hal I om suggesting is that we can distinguish

x
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between different kinds of statements, and see whether there
is inherent in them the seed of lack of trustworthiness, the
imperfection which requires an artificlal rule. ‘

Confessions have that sced because it is a strange thing
for a man to invite self-disaster, und you wonder why did he
do it, was he crary, was he coorced? Whv did he invite self-
disaster?

But vwhen & men stznds up end says, "I didn't do this thing,
this is what happened," you do not have that sa;e element of
eccusing himself and, therefore, that ls absent there. In that
case hls statement 1s very much 1lko the statement of the man
that 1s made before the crime takes place; he is making & state-
ment in his own behalf, stating it as well as he can Lo present
his side of the picture.

Justice Frankfurter: Perhaps the Fngllsh have thrown over-
board the whole thing because of the difflculty in drawing lines.

Take a case 1n vhich he makes a statement about what has
been characterized, I think correctly, as a cruclal fact; that
is the thing that will land him Lln jail, a crucial fact. But
by no stretch of the imagination could you call it & confession.

Mr. Davis: That ie correct.

Justice Frankfurter: It is awfully difficult for me to
say thet i1f he had sald, "Wes, I did it,' y~u could not use it,
but he disclosas the cruclel fact which lnevitably proves he did

1t, that one 18 more trustworthy than the other.

LoneDissent.ord
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(Luacheon rececs)

The Chief Justice: Mr. Davis.

Mr. Davis: If the Court please, . think I will move on to
the second portion of my argument which proceeds on the asswip-
tion, wvhich I hope will not turn out to be the fact, proceeds
on the assunptlion that thls Court wlll apply the corroboration
rule to admisslons such as are involved in this case, and then
the questlon 1s, vhat degree of corroboration is necessery,
how far must all of the elecments of the corpus delicti be
corroborated?

I think I can state thetl -- well, petltloner's counsel
has admltted that under the Dueche rule, which 1s‘chat not all
of the elements of the corpus delictl must be corroborated,
that 1f that rule is adopted there is sufflclent corroboration
in this case.

Let me make that clear. The crime lnvolved -- and L speak
only of the substantive crime for present purposes == the
cubstantive crime consisted of the payment of money to a
Government officlel for the performance of services in a matter
in which the Government was interested, in this case related
to the tems of the particular crime, the payment of money by
Opper to Culderon, & Covernment offlicinl, for his services in
peasing upon the spcelficetions for sun goggoles for a contract

under which the Alr Forvee was buylng survivol kits.

Fow, there 1r certalnly evidence == and I do not think it

s ———
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1s disputed -- there is evidence to go to the Jury, that

Mr. Hollifleld -- did I say Calderon? 1 meant Hollifield is

the Government official -~ Mr. Holllfield, the Government
officlal, did pass upon Lhe specifications and did change the
speclflcatlicns with respect to the sun.gosgles in order to =-

and 1t does not have to be proved that this was & wvrongful act --
i1t may have been an appropriute act -- but nevertheless he did
change the specifications for sun glasses, and under them

Opprer's sun glasses vere admlisslble in the survival kits.

éo the question 1g, there are tvo elements in the crime;
one, the services which have been substantlally proved, and
the other is whether he wes pald monoy in connection with those
services.

Now, 1f we accept the Daeche rule that not all of the
elements of the corpus delictl rust be csteblished, but only
&n element of the corpus deallictl that the evidence need only
polnt to, support that other element, then there can be no
qQuestlon that the alement of the services 1s established so
that this man 1s not golng to ba convicted on the baslis of his
admission alone. It will be his admlsslon, 1f you please, with
respect to the payment of reney, plug services which are proved
outside of Lhe payment of money.

Justice Dlack: You say there 1s no quegtlisn about the
sorvices? I understood that Mr. Yioner had challenged that.

Mr. Davis: WVell, therc 18 no doubt, Your Honor, that




49

Hollifield's dutles were to pass upon the speclification, and
that he di& pass upon the speclfication.

Justice Black: That is right.

Mr. Davis: BSo that he did the acts which are involved.
The only questlion i1s was he pald money for doing those acts.

Justlice Black: 1 see.

Mr. Davis: Again, it 1s not an eiement of the crime that
these were wrongful acts, elther. It may be that the Government
caved money through changing the specifications of the goggles,
and that these goggles were perfeotly good goggles.

The only questlion ls whether an outside contractor should
pay money to a Govermment offlcial for services which he 18
under a duty to perform for his employer, the United States,
and his services hers consisgted of passing upon the contents
of these survival kits.

Justice Black: The dlspute 1s whether he did it on account
of the payment of money end whether it had been proven that
the money was patd.

Mr. Davis: That is right; that is right, Your Honor.

But under the Dzache rule we can accept the admission to
support an element of the corpus delicti as long as there 18
outeids evidoince to support Lhe remelning elements of the corpus

delicti.

Justice Frankfurter: Under your rule, would there be

corroboretion il L1t were proved alleunde that he was in Chlcago
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or vhoever was In Chicago that 1s related to this transaction
on that day, on a particulsr day? I am not glving a horrible
example; I am just trying to find out =~ I take 1t you do not
mean there have to be three Ltems; one 1tem might be enough?

Mr. Davis: I really do no: know how to answer that

question, Mr. Justice Frankfurter.

Justice Frankfurter: Pairdon me.

Mr. Davis: I reclly do not know how to angver that, It
is very close. It is such a colorless fact, 1t adds very 1little,
it is hardly substantial by itself to support the confession,

the adnission.

Justice Frankfurter: It is one item. Maybe you say it
is de minimis., Is it do minimie?
Mr. Davis: I do not know; 1t seoms to me that 1t is very

slight =-- 1t is like saylng that the statement that someone

did somethling is corroborated by the fact that he was alive.
To be sure he could not do 1t unlecs he was alive; he could not
do 1t unless he was in Chleago, but the corroboration is so

elight .

Justlice Frankfurter: How about draving money, drawlng cash,
vithout the amount --

lr. Daviss WVell, I think you are coming close.
Justice FPrankfurtor: Cetting warmer.
Mr. Davis: Bul turning to the questlion of the corroboration

of the payment in this cuoe g A may for & moment, we must

. —
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romaﬁber that the admission that was involved in this case is
g falrly detalled admisslon.
He not only sald he paid him 1,000, but fortunately he
vent on and gave some of the detalls as to the way he made
the payment . He went home and got $1,000 from his house; he
drew & check which he cashed on the following Monday; he gave
the exact date that it took place on, namely, the l4th of April.
He mentloned the fact of a telephone call; he gave quite
a 1little incidentel detall with relation to these payments .
Now, imuch of the corroborative evidence decls not only
-w1th motives and so forth, but there 1s support for these
partlcular detalls with respect ©o the telephone conversation
the day before, there 1s in the evidence the record of the tele-
vhone company showlng a telephone czll from Mr. Hollifield's
te2lephone in Duyton to Mr. Opper, by neme, in Chicago'nn tie
13th of April, 1951, which 1s precleely what Mr. Opper stated
as the facts.
Justlce Black: As to the date, too?
Mr. Davis: The date, too.
Then we have -~
Justice Reed: Thatiwould not be corroboration by the
latrocductlon of evidencé as to any elemont of the crime, would 1t?
Fre. Davis: Stending by iteelf, this evidence proves
mothing, except it var a telephons conversation; 1t does not

show that anyons hoe done snything wrong. It supports, however ~--




52

Justloe Reed: Standing by itself, Lf that vas the only N
corroboration, do you still figure that tﬁat vas enough?

Mr. Davis: No, I think not. I think that you have to ii
take all of these detalls.

Let me relate the full amount of the corroboration, and we
can tell a little better whether I am right in saying that if
there is -- 1f there nceds to be corroboration that there was.

I do not kmow that we get enywhere by taking each individual

ltem, 1f we have a whole group of items, which I think,in the

whole, corroborates whether an individuel one does or not.
Justice Black: Huve you stated them altogether in the
brief?

Mr. Davis: Yes, [ have.

Justlce Black: Just consccutively?

Mr. Davis: Yes., i

Justlce Black: In an assembly line?

Mr. Davis: Yes; they are stated at page -- what Mr. Wiener ;
referred to as the dime novel detective approach, or something
llke that -- $2 detectlive novel. . i

They appear on pages 53 and 54 of my brief.

First, I call attention to the fact that the telephone
cell, which was proved by the record from the telephone company; [
then the alrline ticket office records which show that
Holliflield reserved end used alrline tlckets from Dastonlto

Chicago on the 14th of Aprill, which 1o the date payment was




supposed to be made; and now I come to this $1,000 check,

which seems to me to ba among the strongest of the items.

The check 1s dated, strangely enough, April 13th. April

13th 1s the date of tho telephone call.

Mr. Opper stated that he got the money on the lith, pald ]
1t to Hollifleld on the 14th, and that he cashed this check
on the 16th.

There wes evldence by the bank teller who cashed the
check that thls =-- that Mr. Opper cashed a check made out to
cash for $1,000 on the 16th of Aprll; in other words, these
detalls tie in precisely with the terms of the admissions made
by =-

Justlce Black: 'ho cashed that?

Mr. Davis: Opper cashed the check; Opper got the money

from his owr home. H

Justice Black: On Lhe 14th? g
Mr. Davis: Opper got money on the 1l4th.
Justlice Black: I thought You sald he cashed this check "

on the =-- i

Mr. Davis: He cashed the check on the 16th, Opper's i
statement 1s, "I had 1t at home" -~ and I do not glve it.exactly -
"I had 1t at homo, $1,000 in cash which I went and got and "
puld over to lollifleld. I replenlished my cach supply by |
cashing a check for §1,000 on tho Following Monday when the

Lanks were open. I wos unzble tn do it on the date of the
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payment because the benks were closed, it being a Saturday."

Justlce Burton: Does that explain the date of April 13th,
He would have his $1,000 at home, and write a check out and
take 31,000 out, and put it in that plle, and he could not
cash 1t uatil Monday; he ceshed it on the 16th.

Mr. Davis: That is correct; that is in effect his
explanation of what went en, the prescnce of the check and
the presence of the buak statement shows that the account was
dablted with $1,000 on the 16th, would seem to me to be strong
evidence that his story 1g true.

Justlce Reed: Is this the only cash check in a series of
checks?

Mr. Davis: I do not know whether any of the other checks
vere made out to cash; there were other large cheeks which were
charged agalnst hig account, but they are not in evlidence, and
I have no idea, I do not know whether they were made out to
cash or made out to sorne other person. Thls partiecular check is
made out to cash and does not heve any indlcation on it,that 1t
does not have Holllifield's name or aenylhing like chat,

As a matter of faut: 1t has New York expense written up in
the corner, "N¥ ¥x," which 1s explalned that the funds were
ueed for a trip to New York, the $1,000,

Justice Reed: Wes the account & personal acoount?

Mr. Davio: It war bhina poruonal cceount, I believe; I am

not sura; 1t

e In the record. I will have to chieck on 1t.
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But all this detall as to whether the -- the account is
in the name of -~ 1t appears in the third volume or the reoord,
page 104, and 1t 1s a personzl account in the name of

Mr. Wiliiam J. Opper.

All of thls detall with respect to the payment 1s necessary }
only 1 we accept the stricter rule as to corroboration, namely,
that 211 of the factor:s, alli of the elements of the corpus
dellcit must be proved by outside evidence.

If we accept the more lenlent rule of the Second Circuit,

then the fact that there is corroboration on other clements

SO S ———

of the corpus dellctli prevents this defendant from being 7
convictad on the basls of hls asdmlissions alone, and it 1s
sufficient.

However, I think in this case the rocord is sulficient to |

Justify the rule in the Second Clreuit or in the Court of
Appeals, and that there 1 no occasion here to distinguish
betwsen the two rules.

But I do suggest that 1f we are going to translate into 1
thlis field of admissions a strict rule as to the admissiblility
of evlidence, that we need not o further than is necessary in
order to provent a man from belng convicted out of his own mouth b
alote, aud that we chould, &f theve le occasion to do 80, restrict
‘e artificial adrdsuions on evideacs s much as 18 conslistent b
7Ath Lhs purpoas for Liposing conddiiong, and 1t seems Lo the

Coveliminent, Lhit the nelacoler aetedilshad by the sScoand Slroult

do accomplish that end, tnd thnt: Lhare !'s no nosd of golng as ’
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made by Hollifileld, the co-defendant, were used by the jury or
were consldered by the court below against this petitioner so
that he was, in elfect, convicted on the basis of the admissions
or confessions of his cc-defendant.

If That happencd, that was imporper, because the confessions
of Hollifleld were clearly not admissible, They were made
independently of any consplracy between the two; they were
admissible only against him,

He cannot confess 13 crime for Opper, and the question 1is
whether or not this conviction should bs reversed because we are
convinced that the Jury dld not follow what counsel has admitted,
ths meticulcous instructions of the Judge with respect to limiting
thz use of this evidence.

It 1 ha»d to tell, it is impossible to tell, what, in fact,
the jury did take into zonsideration in the juryroom.

We know, however, or we believe, that there is sufficient
evlidence cutside of Hollifield's confessions to Justify a
conviction, and 1t seecms that the only way you can pass upon
these cases 1s to assuma that the jury has followed the instruc-
tions which have been gilven to it -- either that, or in this
kind of a case, there should not be joint trials. There is no
middla ground that T know of. But if you do not have Joint

triele in this case, in Lhls kind of a case, you oome to other

elements of unfalrnoss.

The third 1ssue in this case 1s whether or not the admissions

e demea——




This particular kind of a case, where there 18 the
assertion that a governuent official has been paid money by

a third party ror a2 lces to the government isg a particularly
appropriate kind of & cage for a joint trial because the facts
which nave to be proved in relation to one defendant are

directly material in the trial of the other defendant. It is

net an artificlal kind of a joint trial,

The transactlion 13 a Jolnt transaction, and it seems as
though that 1s the approprlate place for a joint trial, and if
you éo not have a joirt trial, either the defendant who comes
first or the defendant who comes second, if one 18 convicted
and the other 1s not, is in a position to complain that t' e
government took unfair advantage and took its strongest case
first, and then went zgainst the weakest case, or besides being
a burden on the Court, 1t does work unfairly 28 to the defendants
themselves to separate this kind of a trial.

It gives the govermnment a trial run in one case, maybe
its strongest case, that 1t can then use in ita weakest case.

As to whether or not the BGourt of Appeals 1tself gave imprope:
welght to Hollifield's confeassion, agaln all we can do is to
read what the court did. The court clearly states that
Hollif1leld s confenslons were admigsible only against Hollifleld,
and in no cas2 con’uses the admiscions of ome with respeot to

the ¢ cher,

Thorefora, I thin: there 18 1ittle or ne substance to this
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third point in the case, and basically this case will go on the
question of the application of the corroborative rules to the
problem of admissions.

Since I have one minute left -- I have more than one minute
left, five minutes left -- I would like to address myself -- just
make one more attempt to poilnt out what I believe should be the
grounds for dlstinguiching confessions and admissions, and I
will start by saying that I belleve there is a large sbadowy
area 1in here where there cen be dlspute whether the statement is
a confesslion or an admlsslon, and I will go further and say
if the rule 1s to Le applled, that if there 18 a shadowy area,
then the rle requiring corroboration should certainly be
appliad 1f 1% appears to be the kind of thing which is a
conr'esalion,

But when you atart at one end of this field and have
admissions of gullt, acknowledgments of gullt, maybe a full
acknowledgment of guilt, and you come down to the other end and
have a categorical denial of gullt, 1t seems to me that there
is no confusion between thosze two ends of the spectrum, and
that there is no difficulty in applying the rule requiring
corroboration to the top and not to the bottom.

REDUTIAL ARGUMENT ON BEHALF OF THE PETITIONER
By Mr. Wiener
Mr. Wiemer: 1If the Court please, I think I can best assist

the Court oy bringing into focus the lssues on which the parties
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are still apart.

First 1s the cloudy classification between confessions and
admissiona, I think the cloudiness is due primarily to the
attempt to inject the element of inner consciousness of guilt,

I suggest that we concentrate on what it 1s thav makes
2 confession a confesslon, and let us leave the labels alone,
and I say thal where a defendant admite every element of the

offense charged, that 18 a confession, regardless of whether

he says, "I am innocent in my heart, I am sorry I di” it; I guess

I was foolish or I deserve punlshment, and when do I start going
to jail."

fn adnlssion in the sence that 1t requires the same kind of
corroboration that a confesgsion requires, an admission 18 a
statement that admits less than all of the elements of the
offense charged, and agaln it makes no difference whether
coupled with the admission of elements of the offense, there 1is
any statement about inner morel feeling, "I am guilty, I am not
gullty," or anything like that.

And that second class which is involved here, we say,
requires the same kind of corroboration, and we say that that
is what the Court had in mind in the Warszower Case, and it 1is
what the Court was ssked to say in the Warszower Case,

This Court, 17 it made a mistake, wae led astray by the
goverment, It vas not led astray; the government took-the

correct poslitinn.,
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Then we get a more questiorable area which I mentioned by
way of distinction, and that 1s where the admission does not
touch an element of the offense, but it admits particular
facts.

There are two questlons there: Does every admission of a
fact have to be corroborated? We do not go that far; we take
no position on 1it,

Doss every admlssion of a cruclal fact have to be corrob- «
orated even though it is not an element of the offense? We do
not have to say that it does. Yéur Heonors will have that
problem to resolve in the Calderon Case.

The only poaition that this petitioner has to take is to
say that where the admieslon covers an essentlal element of the
offense charged, then it requires corroboration,

Now, the second issue which I will take a little out of
order, what about the quantum of corroboration?

As I sald in the argument-in-chlef, there 1s no doubt that
under the loose Daeche rule there is sufficient corroboration.
I do not question that at ali.

I think also that it must be admitted, although the
government 1s apparently not prepared to concede it, it must
be admitted that under the strict rule, the Forte-Ercoli Rule,
which has the support of most of the circults, you have got to
make some proof of every eloment of the offense outside of

what the defendant hilmcelf says; and T think 1t must be conceded
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that no such case 1s made out because, take Hollifleld's statement
out of the case, it ‘7 admitted they must go out; take
petitioner's statements out of the case, do you have in this
record any evidence that a crime was probably committed by
someone?

I think the only appropriate answer, I mean the only
chbjectlive answer anyone could make, 18 no, you do not have a
showing that a crime was probably committed by someone, absent
the statements of the two co-defendants.

That brings ua to the question which rule of corrcboration
should be adopted here. We think, of course, that is a question
-- there are reasons we have urged in the brief and orally why
the strict rule shculd be adopted.

The strict rule 1s hased on experience with confessions.
The strict rule has won over most of the circuits.

The military rule shifted from theIDaeche Rule to the
strict Forte Rule. There must be some reason bshind this
unanimity of opinion, and one reason is that confessions are very
untrustworthy, and they ought to be discouraged.

Easically, of course, it 1s a matter of Jjudgment how bad
are they. Vell, most courts thaj have wrestled with it feel
they are bad and they ought to be discouraged and, therefore,
tie strict rule of corroboration io applied, and it has not
hampered luw onlforcement here in the District where it has been

the law for 2 long time.
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Now, as to the conspiracy item, I am afraid my brother
pavis was knocking down a straw man as the case appears on the
briefs filed on the merits. We do not contend that the Court
below, in affirming the conviction, relied nn Hollifield's
statement. We do not make that contention at all.

We say, after screening the record, that the dangers
implicit in conspiracy that one man's statements will be used
against hils co-defendant although they are inadmissible in law
against him, we say that danger is demonstrated in this case.

We cannot assume that the Jjury followed the Judge's
instructions. We know they did not, because if they followed
them, they could neot hava found this petitioner guilty on the
counts where the Court of Appeals set aside the conviction.

So in the present pesture of this case, we refer to the
danger 1lmplicit in conspiracy prosecutions, the danger implicit
in Joint trials as another supporting reason why the strict
Forte-Ercoli Rule of corroboration should be followed, because
1t will minimize that danger; 1t will minimize that danger
because 1t will focus the Jury's attention, it will concentrate
the Jury’s attention, to the independent evidence which is
admissible against all of the defendants rather than on the
statements ol a particular defendant which are admissible only
against him; and that 1s why we feel that this Court should
adopt the strict rule of corroboration, and if it does, there

1s no question but that thls conviction must be r'v!r-od;

(Wwhereupon, at 2:55 o'elock p.u,, the hearing in the above-
entitled matter was concluded.) '

LoneDissent.o






